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SAVE TIME SPECIFYING PAINTS!

USE THE

ARCHITECTS’ & ENGINEERS’ GUIDE

PLANNED SYSTEMS FOR INTERIOR/EXTERIOR PAINTING

SCUTHERN COATINGS AND CHEMICAL COMPANY, THE SOUTHEAST'S FINEST FULL
LINE PAINT MANUFACTURER, HAS ESPECIALLY DESIGNED THIS GUIDE TO RELIEVE
THE ARCHITECT & ENGINEER OF THE RESEARCH NECESSARY TO SPECIFY PRO-
DUCTS FOR INTERIOR AND/OR EXTERIOR PAINTING.

Use Firm Letterhead And Write To:
P.O.Box 160 T

Sumter, 5.C. For your FREE copy

\ . AND CHEMICAL CO,

— s - ' i ' ® SLIDELL, LA. - SUMTER, S. C.
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SUMTER FLUSH DOORS
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COMPANY

P. 0. BOX 160, SUMTER, S. C.

SEE OUR CATALOG IN SWEET'S
ARCHITECTURAL CATALOG FILE

OVER 200,000 FT. PRODUCTION CAPACITY PER DAY!

LET OUR TWO SOUTH CAROLINA MILLS FILL YOUR

LUMBER REQUIREMENTS

LARGE INVENTORIES FOR FAST SHIPMENTS

“SUPER SALTS'j
PRESSURE TREATED LUMBER
(COPPERIZED CHROMATED

¢ Finish — Siding — Flooring — Mouldings ZINC ARSENATE)

* Paneling — Stepping — Boards — Framing

* Gut-to-length Dimension And Trim Russellville Lumber Company
* YP Parts for Ladders, Toys & Furniture d
* Double T&G Roof Decking — Timbers -

Clarendon Flooring Company
P. 0. BOX 160, SUMTER, S. C.
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mid-state tile company mid-state tile company

MID-STATE TILE FOR RESIDENTIAL AND INSTITUTIONAL USE

Mid-State Tile Company is one of the South’s
largest producers of ceramic tile. Highly skilled
craftsmen work with the most modern equip-
ment available to produce a product that is
superior in quality. Each year this progressive
company produces millions of square feet of
tile for residential, institutional, and industrial
installations — installations where the best in

ceramic tile is desired.
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WATERPROOFING

Industrial

Commercial

Residential
18 YEARS EXFERIENCE AND SERVICE
IN GREENVILLE COUNTY
Telephone CE 5-6413

Greenville, South Carolina

31 Augusta Street

PLATT & SON

Residential, Commercial, Remodeling & Repairs
““Builder of Better Homes”’

Dial 272-5554
OCEAN DRIVE, SOUTH CAROLINA

Main Street

INC.

Carlington Highway

Box 1092

Florence, South Carolina

RALPH HARDIN. ]J—*—w

CONTRACTOR

Residential - Commercial
Construction
Route #1
Conover Road

Telephone 226-5632

Anderson, South Carolina

COMPLETE LINE OF BUILDING MATERIALS
Wallboard — Insulation — Kitchen Cabinets
And Flooring
DELIVERY SERVICE

Established 1915

FLORENCE
BUILDER’S SUPPLY COMPANY

Telephone MOhawk 2-4331 — 167 W. Darlington

Florence, South Carolina
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Construction Company
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EDITOR’S NOTES

At the recent architects' re-
gional conference, all of the
points offered to solve the
""Equation For Excellence'’
had the same underlying idea-
an idea which is becoming
more and more important in the
thinking of every architect, and
which . should be on every
person's mind whether he Is
a lawyer, doctor, or engineer.
This is the need for a program
to combat the ugliness around
us in this country. This is
not a problem [for architects
only - to be solved by designing
handsome buildings - but for
all of us who must live and

work in these buildings, see
their surroundings and main-
tain them.

A.l.A. president A. G. Odell
said at the conference: "'The
ugliness which threatens to
blight our cities, large and
small, is now the subject of
a great public groundswell of
interest in the couniry.

"*Long of concemm to archi-
tects, the lb?’f)b[f’w u’f the
ugliness of our environment
has now aroused the public,
and govemment is beginning
to feel the pressure of public
opinion,"’

Mr. Odell [elt strongly, and
rightly so, that the work of
architects must become the
most important factor in the

campaign against ugliness
and said;

“Thus, it is no longer
enough for us to criticize,
we must follow criticism up
with constructive action. This
is the architectural profession’s
biggest challenge and biggest
opportuntty today. You must
lead the campaign to bring
bammony, order and beauty to
our national physical environ-
ment,

YAt the national level, A.l. A.
has moved into action with
urban design projects, semindars
with the press and programs
with public relations groups,*’
he said. '""Now local chapters
must pick up the lead in form-
ing and developing wvolunteer
committees in the community
which will seek out the good
elements and hold them, and
seek out the ugly areas and
work out plans for changes."'
He quoted a statement from.
FORTUNE magazine, "'[tis very
much a part of businesses’
business lo credle dan environ-
ment in which the citizen can
grow and thrive."' And he climax-
ed his talk with a plea to his
fellow architects ‘‘to make
American cities a place where
a citizen will come, not just
to live but to live the good life."’
Enough saia.

Stuart Baesel, Editor.

CAROLINA
WIREBOUNDS, INC.

Poultry Crates Frit Crates
P. 0. Box 227
Springfield,«South Carolina

TRIANGLE ELECTRICAL
COMPANY, INC.

P. 0. Box 889

New Bern, Narth Carolina

BROOKS SOUTHERS

Contractor & Builder
224 Navaho
Phone 582-7632
Spartanburg, South Carolina
*"We Build With You In Mind."'

New Construction,

Remodeling, Repairs

W. F. COX COMPANY
FOR

* B uilding Materials

* Plumbing Supplies

* Electric Supplies

* Woolsey Paints
Dial 357-3514

Loris, South Carolina
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FOR ARCRITECTS ONLY

Because of the importance of the
topics- explored at the recent re-
gional conference and the bearing
of these topics on the practice of
architecture today, a booklet con-
taining the actual text of the meet-
ings is to be released within the
next few weeks. In addition the Re-
view of Architecture will publish in
detail a critical view of the activi-
ties of the conference.

At the South Atlantic Regional
Conference F. Earle Gaulden of
Greenville was elected president of
the S.C.A.I.LA. Other chapter officers
elected were Harold J. Riddle of
Myrtle Beach, vice president; Phelps
H. Bultman of Columbia, secretary
and treasurer; and Avery W. Wood
Jr. of Greenville, Board of Directars.

Bernard Rothchild of Atlanta was
ngminated for the regional director-
ship held by W. E. Freeman Jr. of
Greenville. The official election of
Mr. Rothchild will not be until the
national association's meeting next
June.

Mr. Gaulden succeeded John W.
Weems Jr. of Aiken as the state
president. He had previcusly served
the state chapter as secretary-trea-
surer and vice president before as-
suming the presidency.

We welcome the new members to
the A.lLA. and encourage their
participation in chapter activities.
The new members for 1964 are
listed below.

Roy T. Ammons
3001 Edwards Rd.
Taylors

Barry A. Bankes
109 Stratford Road
Greenville

James Paul Barnes
124 South Coit St.
Florence

Henry D. Boykin, Il
1109 Broad St.
Camden

Stanley B. Duffies
557 East Faris Rd.
Greenville

Anders J. Kaufmann
Clemson University
Clemson

Charles J. Liles
1110 Parkins Mill Rd.
Greenville

Frank E. Lucas
Berkeley Court House
63 Rutledge Ave.
Charleston

James Mack
Greenville

Peter Alex McKellar 1lI
P. O. Box 383
Charleston

Leonard T. McCoy
1001 Broadway Extension
Myrtle Beach

John G. Richards IV
1501 Lady St.
Suite 401

Columbia

John D. Rogers
101 Folger Avenue
Easley

Sidney W. Stubbs Jr.
430 Church St.
Mt. Pleasant

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATE
Richard T. Reed

5A Lee St.

Clemson

ASSOCIATES
Michael J. Brannon
1508 Reidville Rd.
Spartanburg

James E. Bruce
1 Pine Ridge Dr.
Greenville

Kemp Mooney
P. O. Box 110
Columbia

John A. Pinckney
P. O. Box 6001-B
Greenville

Gordon A. Ross
Holly Tree Plantation
Kingstree

Julian M. Wilson
Sullivan's Island

William Wysong
1310 Cherokee

Florence

UNASSIGNED MEMBERS
J. Robert McCreary

563 Greene St.

Augusta, Ga.

Charles M. Sappenfield
P. O. Box 8385
Asheville, North Carolina

DURANT CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY
Commercial - Industrial
General Contractor
610 Cherokee Road
Telephone MO 2-2171

Florence, South Carolina

Corbett’s

§oh .ﬂnteriard N

ALrINE 2-1366

3210 MiLLwooD
COLUMBIA, S. C.

GRADY SKINNER

General Contractor
Residential - Commercial
Route 1 — Phone 332-7045

LAMAR, SOUTH CAROLINA
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M. B. KAHN

CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY

General Contractors

1311 Blossom Street

Columbia,
South Carolina

Building & Loan Association " &

SITANDARD g

1211 WASHINGTON STREET
BRANCH: TRENHOLM PLAZA
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

ROOF TRUSSES

EXTERIOR
Wa// &cﬁond

COMPLETE COMPONENTS MADE TO SPECI-
FICATIONS FOR THE BUILDING TRADE

COMPONENTS ..
Dial 366-7214

Authorized - Licensed
SANFORD TRUSS
FABRICATORS

Riverview Rd Rock Hill
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Precast Aggregate Panels

DIIE EXPOSAT. 1Nt

MOUNT AIRY, N. C. 27030
TELEPHONE 786-8338

P. O. BOX 926



FREE ESTIMATES

PAINT CONTRACTOR 3

PHONE GR 2-7460 INMAN, SOUTH CAROLINA

coviL

INSULATION
COMPANY

CLECKLEY & McGEE, INC.

General Contractors

INTEGRITY

ORANGEBURG, S. C.

Box 374

129 River Street - CE 3-4576

Greenville, Sourh Carolina Phone JE 4-5580

REAG
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Tile and Brick
Furnished By

BE REALLY REFRESHED! CAROLINA
....PAUSE FOR COKE! CERAMICS

SOUTP:OT(TSL;DRL(’;‘LD:L:UT?ST&AC{F(;E;[?AOG;SOTL‘T‘LCEO:;N;S‘:;OCIATION SU7'74~32 Columbia, S. C.
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NEW WOOD HANDRAILS with
an aluminum core substructure
are furnished as a complete unit
by Blumcraft. The solid walnut
wood, wilh a natural hand-
rubbed oil finish, is bonded
to the aluminum at Blumcraft's
factory. This new railing concept
combining wood and metal is

trademarked RAILWOOD*

Complete 1964 catalogue avail-
able from Blumcraft of Pitisburgh,
ARCHITECTURE.’ 10 460 Melwood St., Pittsburgh 13, Pa.




A
PORTFOLIO
OF
CHURCHES

UK,
‘I/ I"!.

On the following pages is present-
ed a Portfolio of Churches, some
extremely modern, some modern,
some traditional, all reflecting the
desires of their congregations for
hallowed space. It has been said
that the church of today has re-
placed the movie palace as the num-
ber one victim of “pop" architec-
ture in which weird shapes, decora-
tions, and color schemes are all
combined in the name of religious
architecture. We should be pleased
that sane, sensible, but dramatic
architecture still dominates the re-
ligious scene in South Carolina.
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MARTIN LUTHER
LUTHERAN CHURCH

Charleston

Architects: Tarleton & Tankersley
Greenville

ARCHITECTURE/ 12
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PROPOSED CHAPEL AND EDUCATIONAL BUILDING
TRINITY METHODIST CHURCH
Blythewood, S, C.

Architects: Reid Hearn & Associates
Columbia
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PARK HILL BAPTIST CHURCH
Spartanburg

Architects: Lillard-Westmoreland-McGarity
Spartanburg
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ST. LUKES EPISCOPAL CHAPEL
Hilton Head Island

Architects: McGinty & Stanley
Hilton Head Island

Ground breaking ceremonies w

held on April 16, and construction
began immediately on St Luke's

Episcopal Church

The $93,000 church is to have a AUGUSTA HEIGHTS BAPTIST CHURCH, GREENVILLE

seating capacity of 140. It is to be Architects: Chas. Potter Jr. and Alison Lee

constructed with tabby stucco walls
and battenboard cypress. These ma-
terials have long been used in church
construction in Low Country So
Ca

olina The design is nte
porary however, and will be compa
tible with residential and commer
cial construction in near-by Sea
Pines Plantation. Similar landscape
biending materials are used there.

Windows in the new church

building will be seeded marine glass

will be a free standing bell
tower and altar iminated I

will be used in the interior con
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TRINITY PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

Travelers Rest

Architects: Tarleton & Tankersley
Greenville
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BETHEL METHODIST CHURCH, Columbia

Architects: Geiger & Califf Associated Architects
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ST. JAMES METHODIST CHURCH
Columbia

Architect: P. B. Harrison, Jr.
Columbia

J-D-WiLkKins Co.

—— e
MANUFACTURERS

Paint, Decorating

Commercial, Industrial, Residential

Avchitectural Metal

RA 3-8679
CHARLESTON, W.LEE ST. AT GLENWOOD AVE.
SOUTH CAROLINA GREENSBORO. N.C.
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L. W. BISHOP & SONS Cromer & Sullivan

J ion Compan
SAND & CRUSHED STONE Constructio PRIy

316 RIBAULT — Dial 582-9865 Box 754

Anderson, South Caroli
SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA s g

DIXIE BLUE PRINT PAPER

~ BLUE PRINTS-PHOTO COPY
WHITE PRINTS-DRAWING

. MATERIALS — SURVEYING

" INSTRUMENTS ~ OFFSET

£ PRINTING
Phone i MIMEOGRA PHING

CONTRACTING
349-2671 Phone AL 6-8914

COKER 225 Lady Street -
Building & Supply Company | ! mCqumbla.AS th Carolina 3
TURBEVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA —

Number One ¢ aaaaaa@

g \
SEE LATHING |
. : PLASTERING
9 STUCCO |
. 1
L ]
L

SMITH'S PLASTERING
COMPANY *

Always the same fine standard for

CAPITAL ELECTRIC
SUPPLY CO.

every job, great or small.

P. O. Box 5522 Station B

2015 Marion St. Phone CE 2-4125

Columbia., South Carolina GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA
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PETTIT
CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY

there’s a

just right for
your need.

eCommercial

eIndustrial

Complete Masonry Contractor

PHONE 585-4881

Spartanburg, South Carolina

! FLACK-JONES
MILLWORK B! LUMBER COMPANY
COMPANY

| ANY AND ALL TYPES OF MILLWORK §

WA f . .
“If it’s made oul of wood, call us™ “\\ ‘ I complﬂe & Ilealed I:DI' Bl"ld”lg

Building Materials

o Schools
o Churches
o Cabinets

Phone 787.1216 I m;/.ﬁ-ite 3reafea/

1313 E llerbe Street

| Phone 873-7188 P. O. Box 942
' SUMMERVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA
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SECURITY FEDERAL SAVINGS & LOAN ASSOCIATION, COLUMBIA
From The Office Of Robert S. Lafaye, A.l.A.

ARCHITECTURE



Profile

No doubt about it, ‘‘Mr. Architect”
in Columbia is Bob Lafaye. With
fifty one years of architectural
practice and all but two of it in
Columbia, he knows and can tell you
more about architecture and build-
ing in Columbia than any other
architect in town. It is fascinating
story told by a fascinating man who
came to Columbia from New Orleans
and stayed to become senior partner
of one of Columbia's largest and
most important ‘firms.

This story starts in 1900 when two
young architects from New Orleans
came to Columbia to work for W. B.
Smith Whaley, Architects-Engineers,
originally a Boston firm and one that
was a pioneer industrial developer
of the southeast. These two men
were George E. Lafaye, Bob's older
brother, and Sam Stone. Wanting
experierice outside of their home
state, they planned to work in Co-
lumbia for one year. After the year
Stone returned to New Orleans, but
George Lafaye stayed on as head of
Whaley's architectural department.

Three years later, when Whaley
closed his office and returned to
Boston, Lafaye and Gadsden E.
Shand from Columbia, decided to
continue together as Shand and La-
faye, Architects-Engineers, an asso-
ciation that continued for about
four years until it was dissolved to

ARCHITECTURE/24




DBERT S. LAFAYE
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Bernard Baruch Residence, Georgetown, 1930

Columbia Township Auditoerium, 1929

ARCHITECURE /26

World War Memorial
U.S.C. Columbia, 1934

Federal Landbank Addition
Columbia, 1935




lina had almost stopped. So Bob
Lafaye moved to Miami and, since
Miami’s development was just begin-
ning he had an active part in adding
buildings to its skyline. He worked
with Augustus Geiger, A. E. Lewis,
and others who were actively tied
in with the Chamber of Commerce
promoting building construction.
Bob designed the first skyscraper in
Miami, the eight story Ralston Build-
ing. He also designed the Miami
Bank and Trust Company Building.

~ For Carl Fisher he planned the first
pool in the United States to be im-

mediately adjacent to the ocean.
These were busy and fascinating

days for Bob. He designed resi-

dences for shoe manufacturer John
J. Hannan and machinery manufac-
turer Ralph Worthington, and assis-

 ted architects Paul Chaafin and Bur-

ral Hoffman on plans for the five

- million dollar Deering estates with

its million dollar orchid garden. This

.estate. ) now Villa Viscara. has be-

_come a museum in recent _years.

e

i

Bob Lafaye also designed the nation-

ally “known Fashion Bmx Arl:s
Building at Palm Beach.

“After two years in Miami he re-

turned to Columbia and enlisted
in the South Carolina National Guard

_ Engineers of Mexican border fame
(later part of the 117th Engineers

Regiment of the 42nd Rainbow Di-
vision). In 1919 ‘after service in
lina and the practice of architecture
with his brother. The following year
he passed the South Carolina Archi-
tectural Registration Examination
and was issued his license to prac-
tice architecture, license number 51.

When in partnership with his
brother George, the firm name was
Lafaye until 1935. Then with George,

:Jr..and Herndon Fair, the firm prac-

ticed as Lafaye, Lafaye and Fair un-
til brother George's death in 1939.
After the death of George Lafaye,
the firm was reorganized under the
name of Lafaye, Fair, Lafaye and

Wade Hampton State Office Building
(Hopkins & Boker Associated) Columbia

Educational Bldg., First

South Carolina State College
Orangeburg Baptist Church, Columbia

ARCHITECTURE/27
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Associates, with the associates be-
ing Walter F. Petty, J. DeWitt Mc-
Call, Jr., James F. Tupper, Charles F.
Carter, Jr., and George S. McKibben.
On the Death of Herndon Fair in
May 1964, the new firm was de-
signated Lafaye, Lafaye and Asso-

ciates, the associates being Walter

F. Petty, J. DeWitt McCall, Jr,
Charles F. Carter, Jr., James L,
Tupper, George S. McKibben, John
G. Richards, IV, and Bond R. Sed-
berry, Jr.

Bob Lafaye has been one of the |

most sought after architects in the

State, and the firm has been re-
sponsible since 1902, for some of
the most
in South Carolina. The addition to
one of Columbia's first office build-
ings, the National Loan and Ex-
change Bank, now the First National
Bank, the original South Carolina

National Bank Building, the recently

demolished Colonia Hotel building,
the Y.M.C.A. Building and the
Township Auditorium were among
their earlier works in Columbia. The
work to this date on the Columbia
Hospital, the original planning, re-
modeling and building of Columbia
College, the planning and building
work at the State Hospital and the
Palmetto State Hospital, other hospi-
tals, college buildings, churches
throughout the entire state have
come from this firm. And to top
this off, some of the most hand-
some residences to this day in Co-
lumbia were done personally by
Bob Lafaye.

One of Bob's most interesting re-
collections is the work done for Mr.
Bernard Baruch at ‘‘Hobcaw Bar-
ony' near Georgetown in 1930. Mr.
Baruch's home had recently burned
and he had just about made up his
mind to abandon rebuilding when
Mr. Christie Benet, an attorney and
friend, convinced him that he should
rebuild with South Carolina archi-
tects and contractors handling the
job. Benet suggested Lafaye's firm

ARCHITECTURE /28

important architecture

with J. C. Heslep as contractor.
George and Bob got to George-
town in less time than it takes to
spell Hobcaw Barony and met with
Mr. Baruch in his hotel suite, George
with Mr. Baruch in the living room
and Bob in the bedroom making
sketches for the new structure to
be built on the spot of the old
home. Bob's ideas met with the
approval of Mr. Baurch who then
left for Europe. Final sketches were
sent to him for approval, and the
home was constructed immediately.
Bob Lafaye laughs as he tells
his stories about his dealings with
some of his clients. One in particular
is about the headstrong Colonel who
insisted upon a tower above the
World War Memorial building in Co-
lumbia that would in Bob's opinion

ruin the looks and proportions of

the finely detailed building. He
agreed, however, to make provision
for the tower, but unfortunately
funds ran out and the tower was
omitted from the structure to the
secret pleasure of the architects -
and to all of us who see the build-
ing today.

The Wade Hampton State Office
Building (with Hopkins and Baker of
Florence), the Richland County
Public Library, the Security Federal
Savings and Loan Office Building,
the new Columbia Post Office (with
Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle and Wolff ,
the multi-million dollar new Vete-
rans' Hospital in Charleston (with
Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle and Wolff),
and Cummings & McCrady), the
Blue Cross-Blue Shield Headquar-
ters building, the Hall Physchiatric
Unit and the Chapel of Hope at the
§. C. State Hospital, were all de-
signed by Lafaye, Lafaye and Asso-
ciates, a firm which has found itself
in the middle of the building boom
that is filling South Carolina with.
new construction today.

Bob Lafaye, as the executive head
of this firm, knows that the good
architect’s office has evolved into an

Lutheran Church of the Reformation
Columbia

St. Martin’s-In-The-Field’s
Columbia



William S. Hall Physchiatric Institute,
State Hospital, Columbia

A. C. Flora High School, Columbia Wesley Methodist
Student Center

b.5iC.
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Winner of Special Citation For Excellent Design by the American Assoc- organization of many experts all de-

iation of School Administrators, pendent on each other and working
Williom J. Keenan Jr. High School, 1963. as a team. Times have changed, he
notes, and one man can no longer

- - know all that is necessary to put a
modern efficient building together.
Consequently, Lafaye, Lafaye and
Associates is today made up of
variety of persons all contributing
to the overall picture.

Bob himself, proud of Columbia,
has through the years been very
active in the affairs of the city. He
has served as President of Co-
lumbia’s Rotary Club, as a member.
of the Vestry of Trinity Episcopal
Church, and is a past Director of
the Columbia Chamber of Com-
merce. He has recently been ap-
pointed to the South Carolina Re-
gional Expansion Board promoting
foreign trade. He is also past presi-
dent of the South Carolina Indus-
tries, now supplanted by the State
Development Board.

Bob met his wife Nell when they
were both singing in the church
choir. Later they sang together the
‘leading roles in the Town Theatre's
production of SS Pinafore and Co-
lumbia College’s production of The
Mikado. The Lafaye's have two
children. Nell, Director of Art for
one of South Carolina's school dis-
tricts; and Robert Jr.,, who terms
himself an amateur archaeologist,

Blue Cross-Blue Shield Offices, Columbia, 1964. ::“tt ';2::: ':r':: C:t';;c::“offa'"‘::::

S m | RETRVEST A, SRR TGN 7 ! fess’o"ﬂl.

i _As an architect, Bob Lafaye has
been active for many years in Ameri-
can Institute of Architects affairs,
serving as vice president of the
South Carolina Chapter among his
many other activities, y

If you have an interest in the
recent history of Columbia and
South Carolina and would like to
hear about the details of its physical
growth, visit “Mr. Architect” for his
interesting stories involving the
Columbia National Guard Armory, 1964, growing pains of the State and the

proven remedies offered by Medicine
Man Lafaye.
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CONFERENCE REPORT:
EQUATION FOR EXCELLENCE” ENORMOUS SUCCES

More than five hundred archi-
tects, materials producers, speakers,
and their wives met to explore and
discuss an ‘‘Equation for Excel-
lence’” in architecture at the recent
meeting in Greenville, turning it into
one of the most successful and
most informative sessions in the
history of the South Atlantic Region
of the American Institute of Archi-
tects,

The problems of the architect in
the business world today were ex-
plored in detail, and the impor-
tance of the architect as a com-
munity leader in improving the en-
vironment of man was stressed re-
peatedly along with the need for
architects to work together to ac-
complish this goal.

Mr. Lawrence B. Perkins, F.A.l.A.,
of Chicago, in making the key-
note address of the conference
said:

“The complete architect doesn’t
exist and never did. We need to
complement each other's services.

No architect can work alone. Speak-
ing negatively, design in environ-
ment is unattainable by any one
person. To do excellent work we
need to supplement each other's
emphasis.

“ 'Architect’ is a collective noun,”
Mr. Perkins said. “To be an archi-
tect you need a range of talents
from landscaping to interior design,
mechanical engineering and struc-
tural as well as just plain artistry.
When you add the need for the
abilities for civic planning and pro-
duct design, all to be put into use
an a single job, you have qualifi-
cations that are way beyond the
scope of one mind."”

Another highlight of the con-
ference was a panel discussion on
the architect in the community.
Panel members were Morris Ket-
chum, F.ALA., of New York;
John B. Parkin, F.A.lLA.,, of Tor-
onto, Canada; and Buford L. Pic-
kens, A.lLA. of St. Louis.

Herbert Swinburne. F.A.lLA., of

Philadelphia; D'Orsey Hursey, man-
agement consultant; and Morris
Ketchum were members of a panel
discussing marketing the services of
an architect.

One of the most interesting
features was the talk by A. G. Odell
on the campaign against ugliness.

Two panel sessions concluded the
program. One was on office manage-
ment and organization with Mr.
Hurst; Glen White, also a manage-
ment consultant; and Samuel Spen-
cer, legal counsel for A.lL.A., partici-
pating. The second was on project
case studies and its members in-
cluded Mr. Perkins, Mr. Parkin and
Mr. Swinburne.

Honor awards were announced
by George C. Means, in charge of
exhibits and awards, professor of
architecture at Clemson University.
Award winning designs by South
Carolina architects are shown on
pages 32 and 33.
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CONFERENCE AWARDS
FOR
EXCELLENCE IN DESIGN

Out of fifty three entries in an awards program for the best architectural design work
currently being done in the states of North Carolina, South Carolina, and Georgia, thirteen
awards were given. Four of these went to two South Carolina firms for the entries shown on
these pages. Jurors for the awards program were Morris Ketchum Jr., F.A.l.A., Toronto,
Canada; and Lawrence B. Perkins, F.A.l.A., Chicago.

HONOR AWARD - W.E. FREEMAN JR. & ASSOCIATES

BAY SERVICE STATION
K — MART PLAZA

‘““A strong form with its
unique umbrella shape,
sheltering customers in
inclement weather.”
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MERIT AWARD
LYLES, BISSETT, CARLISLE & WOLFF

““Straightforward Buildings Harmoniously
| Related To Each Other And To Their

. Controlled Environment."'’

RICHLAND TECHNICAL EDUCATION CENTER, COLUMBIA

MERIT AWARD
LYLES, BISSETT, CARLISLE & WOLFF

““A Direct and Governed Solution Of A
Complex Problem With A Strong Regional
Character.”’

FOREST LAKE CLUB, COLUMBIA

d MERIT AWARD
LYLES, BISSETT, CARLISLE & WOLFF
““Grace And Beauty With Religious Over-

tones, Incorporated In A Utilitarian
Structure.”’

ELMWOOD CEMETERY BELL TOWER, COLUMBIA
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Ceco Steel Company

Engineered Specialties Incorporated

Libbey-Owens-Ford Glass Company

Hutleg Sash & Door Company

Binswanger Glass Company

Cota Industries

Ted Hamre, Manufacturer's
Representative

AA Wire Products Company

W. R. Meadows, Incorporated

Mabie-Bell Schockbeton Corporation

Cox Wood Preserving Company

Kawneer Company

Binswanger Glass Company

Georgia-Pacific Corporation

Mosaic Tile Company

J. H. Mack, Mrs. Charles Liles, Mrs. Mack, Mrs. Chapman, Mr. Hugh Duke Power Company

Chapman, Mr. Joe Vervest, And Mr. Liles. Gignt Portiens Sement Sompany
Crawford Door Company

Alan Winslade Association,
Incorporated

Commercial Carpet Company

United States Plywood Corporation

Buckingham Virginia Slate Company

Georgia-Pacific Corporation

American Granwood Company

Devoe & Reynolds Company,
Incorporated

The Celotex Corporation

Ebco Manufacturing Company

The Feldman Company

Modeline of California

J. G. Furniture Company

Republic Steel Corporation

Stuart Baesel, Bobby Lyles, Clemson Student, Mr. & Mrs. R. Edward
Marrs, Mr. & Mrs. Nelson Crowe.

ARCHITECTURE/34




Curtis Electro Lighting Company

Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company

Clay Products Services Incorporated

Georgia Marble Company

Johns-Manville Company

F. Graham Williams & Son

Pleasantburg Fabrics Incorporated

Formica Corporation

Fred R. Hiller Company

Kaiser Aluminum Incorporated

United States Steel Corporation

Granolux Southeast Corporation

United States Gypsum Company

Greenville Concrete Company

Bonnitz Insulation Company

Mid-State Tile Company

Delph Hardware & Specialty
Company

South Carolina Concrete Masonry
Association

Marsh Furniture Company

Noble Concrete Incorporated

Alvin H. Phillips Company

Granolux Southeast Corporation

Southern Panels Incorporated

Blue Ridge Printmakers

American Olean Tile Company

American Sta-Dri Company

Kentile Incorporated

Steelcraft Manufacturing Company

Gordon Schenck, Photographer

Caloric Corporation

Natco Corporation

CONFERENCE REPORT
EXHIBITORS BUILDING PRODUCTS

\ =
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President John Weems, Mrs. Weems, Stuart B_esel, John Ramsay,
F.A.l.LA. (N.C.), Manchester Hudson, Mrs. Baesel, Mrs. Riley
and Andy Riley.

tile company |
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Mrs. McClure, Dean Harlan McClure, F.A.l.LA., Mr.
and Mrs. Robert Clemmer, F.A.l.A., (N.C.), Mr. &
Mrs. Harold Riddle. (Photographs by Henry Elrod,

Greenville.)
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S.C.A.A.IA. 1964 NEWSPAPER AWARD WINNER

Miss Levona Page

Miss Levona Page was born
in  North Augusta, South
Carolina and attended the
University of South Carolina,
majoring in journalism.

She graduated in 1963 and
28 a member of the staff of
the State Record C(ompany
in Columbia,

John Weems, President
S.C.A.l.A., presents Miss
Page’s award.

A CLUBHOUSE STYLED FOR QUIET ELEGANCE

When the decorators were plan-
ningthe interior of the new Co-
lumbia Country Club, completed
last December, they wanted a floor
covering that would stand up under
rough wear of golfers’ spiked shoes.
The answer . . . carpets.

Mr. Louis M. Wolff, of Lyles,
Bissett, Carlisle & Wolff, an archi-
tect with a keen interest in the
decoration of the club, said, '‘Co-
lumbia Country Club was unusual
in that the spike shoes of the
golfers limited the areas that they
could go into without damaging
wood and tile floors. We decided
to carpet the entire facilities that
the golfers would occupy so that
there would be no inconvenience
to them."”

With the execption of the foyer
at the entrance, a section of the
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ballroom used for dancing, the kit-
chen and bathroom areas, the floors
are covered with carpets. Even the

men’s locker room is carpeted.

In order to select a carpet that
would remain unharmed by sharp
spikes, much research was neces-
sary. “A deep pile carpet was chosen
so that the spikes could not reach
the backing,” Mr. Wolff said. "It
not only serves a utilitarian pur-
pose, but it also gives a luxurious
look."”

The decorators believed that car-
pet is easier, even under ordinary
circumstances, to maintain. Where-
as wood flooring requires waxing,
carpeting only needs to be vac-
uumed. Throughout most of the
Club, the carpet is a very light tan
color. Mr. Wolff said, “This was used
so that the clay of the area would

not show on the carpet.”

The light carpet, together with
the neutral color scheme used
almost throughout the Club, con-
tributes to a color simplicity, which
Mr. Frank Brown, another of the
decorators, said was the aim of the
designers. This comfortable, yet
elegant simplicity is one of the
most striking features of the Club's
interior decoration.

The general color scheme of the
entire Club is primarily one single
tone of soft whites and tans with
charcoal black trim around the win-
dows and openings.

Bright orange, red and green
wall hangings which were woven
in Mexico and paintings by South
Carolina artists add splashes of
color to the otherwise neutral
scheme.
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Situated in the midst of rolling
hills approximately 18 miles from
Columbia, the Club's architecture
capitalizes on the surrounding
scenery. Its dining area overlooks
the 27-hole golf course. Through the
wide, ceiling - high windows on
each side of the ballroom, the
diners and dancers have a view of
the golf course and the swimming
pool.

The decorators, too, took advan-
tage of the view. Instead of hang-
ing heavy draperies which would
partially hide the view, they chose
neutral casement cloth curtains to
hang from ceiling to floor over the
windows. The curtains reduce glare
and sun rays.

The five tube-shaped chandeliers
that hang in the ballroom may be
dimmed to just a small amount of

light for mood lighting or may be
increased to an intensity of bright
lighting.

In the ballroom the neutral
shades go from the white walls on
two sides to the tan color of one
wall, the carpet and the chairs. The
walnut paneling and the charcoal
trim around the doors add to the
natural look of simplicity.

Straying slightly from the earthy
colors of tan and brown, the de-
corators used pale shades of blue
for the ladies’ locker room, lounges
and bath. The blue of the carpet
and sofa in the lounge is picked up
in an impressionistic painting of
dancing ballerinas which hangs over
the sofa, blue, green and purple
striped upholstery on the chairs
adds a dash of color to the room.

Shades of tan and brown are

used in the men's locker room,
which has a lounge and a private
card room. Tan carpeting covers
the locker room floor.

The contemporary furnishings in
the Ilounges and dining areas
are upholstered, generally in the
tan shades. One departure from this
is the sofa upholstered in black,
which is part of a grouping in the
main foyer. Surrounded by beige-
colored chairs, the sofa makes a
striking contrast with the walnut-
paneled wall behind it and the light,
earth colors used in the rest of the
foyer. The black is picked up again
in the wood carvings which hang
on the wall above the sofa.

Through quiet simplicity, Co-
lumbia Country Club displays an
elegant personality.
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S.C.A.L.LA. 1964 NEWSPAPER AWARD WINNER

Julian S. Starr, Jr.

Mr. Starr was borm and
reared in Rock Hill, the son
of Julian S. Starr, an asso~—
ciate member of the A.l.A.,
who at the time of his death
in 1956 at the age of 83, was
the oldest licensed architect
in South Carolina, holding
license No. 22.

Educated in the Rock Hill
schools, Mr. Starr graduated
from the University of North

Carolina in the cluss of
1927.

Beginning with THE CHAR-
LOTTE OBSERVER, and
spending eighteen years on
the staff of THE NEW YORK
SUN, he has been editor and
publisher of THE LANCAS-
TER NEWS and THE
CHESTER REPORTER for
the past ten years.

Lancaster County Courthouse

November 4, 1828, must have
been a big day in the little up-
country seat known as Lancaster-
ville. On that date a delegation of
South Carolina’s prominent law-
yers, headed by Stephen D. Miller,
arrived in town to inspect the new
Lancaster County Court House.

Miller, who was elected Governor
of South Carolina the following
month — on December 10 — was
a leader in a long fight for better
courts and court facilities in the
state.

The building they were inspecting
had been designed by Robert Mills,
Commissioner of Public Works for
South Carolina, and had cost the
state $13,050. The resulting report
of Miller and his group to the
General Assembly was enthusiastic.

“The new Court House built by
Willis W. Alsobrook in Lancaster-
ville,” the report said, "“is one of
the finest and best finished build-
ings of the kind in the state, as far
as we have seen.”

Today, 135 years later, that same
report could be made again. Lan-
caster County has just spent $30,-
000 repairing and preserving the old
building which, since 1828, has
been in constant use as the county's
only judicial forum.

The second floor courtroom was
considered too small a few years
ago. Because times have changed
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it is once again adequate to handle
the trial and legal procedures of the
county. Court sessions no longer
attract the crowds of curious spec-
tators that were common before
television, radio and business-as-
usual office hours.

The work of preserving the Court
House for perhaps another hundred
years of active use was entrusted
to two life long residents of Lan-
caster County whose interest in
the structure was both professional
and sentimental. Joseph H. Crox-
ton, the architect who had charge
of the work, is Chairman of the
Lancaster County Historical Com-
mission. Some years ago, when he
was employed by the National Park
Service, he participated in the A-
merican Historical Buildings Survey
which preserves in the archives of
the Library of Congress drawings
and measurements of historically
significant homes and buildings in
the United States.

The bid for the work went to
Angus H. Hagins, Lancaster con-
tractor, whose affection for the old
Court House matched that of Mr.
Croxton. Together they spread the
limited funds available to cover the
amount of work they could do with-
out compromising quality.

Before they started the job, both
were under the impression that the
original contractor, W. W. Also-

brook, had done a sloppy job in
building the Court House. How else
could its generally shabby appear-
ance be explained? Before their work
was completed they had acquired
an admiration both for the archi-
tectural genius of Robert Mills
and the construction work of Also-
brook. Time and periods of neglect
had exacted their toll. but the build-
ing was in surprisingly good condi-
tion.

An addition made to the Court
House in 1853 had been described
in The Lancaster Ledger in 1855
as "slovenly” in construction.

‘‘However," said Mr. Croxton,
“This portion of the building has re-
mained in generally good condition
for 108 years. You can hardly call
work of this kind slovenly."

Before 1795 the legal business
of the county had been conducted
in Nathan Barr's Tavern north of
Lancasterville. A log Court House
was built on the site of the present
building in 1795 and six years later
a two-story frame building, 26 by
40 feet, replaced the log structure.

But the need for a more per-
manent and impressive Court House
and the reorganization of the state's
inadequate judicial system was felt
strongly in the upper reaches of
South Carolina where justice was
too often catch-as-catch-can.

On February 28, 1822, an




advertisement in the Charleston
News and Courier signed by Robert
Mills invited bids for the construc-
tion of Court Houses at Lancaster,
Kingstree, Newberry, Spartanburg
and York.

On July 4 of the same year, be-
fore any action was taken on the
Court House projects, Mills entered
into a contract with Alsobrook to
build a jail at Lancasterville. This
jail, which is still in regular use by
Lancaster County, is the only known
instance of the use of a medieval
design by Mills. The fact that it was
built of field stone, cut and fitted
on the scene, may have restricted
Mills to the use of a simple, utili-
tarian design.

The jail was restored in 1952 and
the cells on the second floor were
modernized for the safer keeping
of prisoners. The white plastered
exterior was preserved as aoriginally
designed.

The Senate and House of the
General Assembly approved an ap-
propriation of $10,000 for the con-
struction of a new Court House
in Lancasterville on December 17,
1825. The money was insufficient,
however, and on completion of the
building in 1828 Alsobrook peti-
tioned the General Assembly for an
additional $3,050 because ‘‘many
important and expensive alterations

were made in the original plan by
order of the Commissioners to the
advantage of the Public Building
but to the great prejudice of the
contractor . . ."

It is not known whether these
important and expensive alterations
were on the spot or by Mills in his
original plans. The overall architec-
tural unity of the building would
seem to indicate that the alterations
were made by the architect. For-
tunately for Alsobrook, the petition
for additional funds was granted.

South Carolina has a justifiable
pride in Robert Mills. He was born
in Charleston in 1781, died in 1855
at the age of 74 and is buried in
the Congressional Cemetéry in
Washington. He was America’s first
native architect. He studied under
Hoban, designer of the White House;
under Thomas Jefferson, for whom
he completed the design for Monti-
cello, and under Benjamin Henry
Latrobe, who came to America in
1796 from England and profoundly
influenced architecture in this
country.

Mills returned to South Carolina
in 1820 and served for 16 years
as state architect and engineer. In
1836 President Andrew Jackson,
with whom Mills had soldiered at
New Orleans, gave him the first
appointment as Federal Architect, a

job he held under seven successive
presidents.

Among his better known works
are the Washington Monument, the
Treasury Building and the Patent
Office in Washington and the Wash-
ington Monument in Baltimore.
South Carolina has many examples
of Mills’ work but few have been pre-
served in the original condition that
makes the Lancaster Court House
unique.

The old Court House has had
moments when its future was doubt-
ful. A fire broke out in a defective
flue in 1859. The fire was extin-
guished but months were required
to unscramble the books and court
records removed so hastily when
it seemed the building was doomed.
In 1865 Sherman's troops made an
attempt to burn the structure. Court
records were piled in the ground
floor corridors and set afire. The
raiding party withdrew in time for
anxious citizens to put out the fire
but not before most of the wills
were destroyed.

Ten years later, in 1875, settle-
ment cracks were found in the
southeast corner and caused con-
cern. These had widened by 1885
and five iron tie-rods were installed
at the second floar level to hold
the building together. Either they
did their work or were not really
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Sales Representative

Excellent Mid-Atlantic territory open.
Leading building product & manufacturer
to be represented. Inquiries held in
strict confidence.

WRITE: 1032 DEPARTMENT A
COLUMBIA, s. C.

MAULDIN
CONSTRUCTION CO.

217 E. Stone Ave.

Greenville, South Carolina

Windham
Roofing Works

Old Georgetown Highway

Residential and Commercial
Contracting

Telephone 84-4924
Mt. Pleasant, South Carelina

LAW
INSURANCE
AGENCY

114 Old Kennedy Place
582-2334 - Spartanburg, S. C.

Homeowners-Business and
Allied Lines

Fabricated Products,
Inc.

P. O. Box 5144 = Station B

Greenville, South Carclina

'L"U -'? LRk

gui!lclin? or Eemocle/ing ?

Treated Lumber

Use Quality Materials ---- [t Pays
Brick
Treated Lumber Panelling
Cement Millwork
Roofing Plywood
Siding Paint

Free Estimates Cheerfully Given

Kinston and Second Avenue

WACCAMAW
LUMBER & SUPPLY CO.

£unyl‘¢'n, /or the g&u‘[t/ﬂ-
P.0. Box 290 - Conway, S.C
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Compliments of

W. 0. Wylie

Lumber Company

**Where The Home Begins”’
Building Materials = Contractors
Telephone 385-5748
Chester, South Carolina

Redi-Mix Concrete

L. S. Weir

Esso Distributor
Phone 482-2134 or 482-2272
Great Falls, South Carolina

needed because no further trouble
from this defect has been ex-
perienced.

The Lancaster Court House is
Palladian in style and for a typi-
cally American reason. Thomas
Jefferson, Mills mentor, did not like
the Georgian design of the period
because it was named for the En-
glish Kings whom he held in low
esteem. Jefferson was a great ad-
mirer of the classic style and re-
garded the 16th Century Italian
architect, Andrea Palladia, as the
ultimate authority in design. He
owned and studied Palladio’s vast
work, ‘“The Four Books of Archi-
tecture.”

There is little question that Jeffer-
son's admiration of Palladio in-
fluenced Mills and was reflected in
plans for the Lancaster Court House.
Mr. Croxton said the arched window
with its two flanking square-topped
side windows in the rear wall
of the Court House was a pure
Palladian design and perhaps the
finest example to be found today.

‘"Anyone who looks even hurriedly
at the Court House,” said Mr. Crox-
ton, ‘“can hardly fail to be aware
of an order in the disposition of
its parts. The intention of the archi-
tect was clearly so to relate all these
that taken together they would pre-
sent a unity."”

With this respect for the inte-
grity of the architect’s original de-
sign, how does one approach the
job of rehabilitating an old build-
ing?

“There is a distinction,” replied
Mr. Croxton, ‘between restoration,
where the object is scrupulous reten-
tion of the surviving work by care-
ful repairs. Where possible, historic
buildings should be preserved rather
than restored.

“Usually it is hard to tamper with
an old building without destroying
that attractiveness acquired with
age. At the same time it is an ac-
cepted principle that parts must be
repaired and replacements gnade of
known original details, such as win-
dows, moldings, etc. Repairs and
cleaning up add to the worth of an
old building when done in a work-
manlike manner that is protective
and sympathetic.

Preservation in such a case is
building surgery aimed at conserva-
tion. Preservation work on the
Court House was made easier be-
cause of the quality of the materials
originally used. The various trim
members comprising the cornices
are of heart pine. We had to re-
place a few pieces because of the
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shrinkage that had occurred over
the span of 135 years.

“We also found it necessary to
anchor all cornices to the masonry.
Originally very little anchoring was
done except at the ends of long
runs, accounting for the sags that
were noticeable before the work was
started.

“All window and door frames are
heart wood, pegged. They were in
excellent shape and required little
but scraping and cleaning before
painting. All windows were replaced
with exact duplicates of the original
Palladian window in the west wall.
This was repaired where necessary
with exact duplicates of the original
molding.

“The roof is framed with heavy,
hand-hewn timbers. The trusses are
made up of 10 by 12 inch bottom
chords 48 feet long. Top chords are
10 by 10 inches and other parts
8 by 10 inches. These members are
all mortised and pegged together.
Each part is stamped with a Roman
numeral marking its proper place
when the trusses were assembled.

“The trusses bear on 6 by 17
inch hand-hewn plates which rest
on 18 inch brick walls. The purlins
between the trusses are 6 by 8
inches and the rafters 4 by 4 inches.
Ceiling joists are 4 by 6 inches
mortised into the bottom chord of
the trusses.

“Only one short section of this
heavy timber had to be replaced.
This was found over the portico and
had been charred by a fire in this
area sometime in the past.

“The first floor walls are solid
brick 24 inches thick. They are 18
inches thick above the second
floor. The second floor is supported
by a series of double barrel vaults
made of brick and forming the
ceiling in each of the rooms in the
original part of the building.

“The contractor who built the
addition in 1853 probably did not
have the skill to undertake these
vaulted ceilings. Certainly no one
tries them today with brick. First
floor corridors have single barrel
vaults above them. Corner supports
in each room carry the weight of
the vaulted ceilings and the floors
above. Together with the exterior
wall, these supports are 48 inches
of solid brick.

"“The floors were originally brick
paved but were covered with wood
flooring in 1892. The brick used in
the Court House are all handmade
and probably came from a kiln near
Lancaster. A brick kiln was known to
have been in operation around that
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Darlington, South Carolina

HIOTT
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

Complete Contracting Service

REAL ESTATE -~ INSURANCE - CONSTRUCTION
FHA-~GI CONVENTIONAL LOANS
Catherine Hiott, Licensed S. C. Realtor
401 Second Street - Phone 2906

Jackson, South Carolina

FOOD MACHINES
AND
DISHWASHING MACHINES
FOR
HOTELS, RESTAURANTS
SCHOOLS, HOSPITALS
& INSTITUTIONS

JIM FLESHMAN

5 POINTS - COLUMBIA, S. C..

ERNEST B. DUCKWORTH

113 SPRING ST., N.W., ATLANTA 9, GA.
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MIDWAY
CABINET COMPANY

¢CUSTOM BUILT CABINETS
oWE INSTALL 6 REPLACE FORMICA TOPS

eDRY WALL CON{RACTING

1718 MALCOLM DRIVE P. C. BOX 4341
TELEPHONE 787-7100
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

WHAT'S MISSING FROM THIS AD??
ATTENTION - BUILDERS & ARCHITECTS!!

FOR
SALE

HOME!

FEATURING:
BUILT-IN:
eGarbage Disposal
eTelephone Jacks
eAir-Conditiening

oOven e TV Antenna

eRefrigeratot

GCOLUMBIA pEnMA\/Ac

Telephone 254-5642

MIDLAND SHOPPING CENTER ® COLUMBIA, 5. C.

35 Years Experience
v/ COMMERCIAL
v/ INDUSTRIAL

v/ RESIDENTIAL

Free Estimates

‘:dial 585.4264

&

170 Reidville Rd. Spartanburg, S.C.

SERVICE AND REPAIRS

T. C. GARRETT
130 E. Kennedy Street

BILLY W. GARRETT
Owners

GARRETT & SON

MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR
HEATING — AIR CONDITIONING

PLUMBING — PROCESS PIPING

LONG ESTABLISHED — RELIABLE — WE KNOW OUR WORK

DIAL 583-6705
SPARTANBURG, S. C.

D. H.
JORDON & SON

COMMERCIAL — RESIDENTIAL

PLUMBING & HEATING

(o S——— )
Al

AMERICAN STANDARD and KOHLER
OF KOHLER PLUMBING FIXTURES

2010 WOODWARD DRIVE

|
C CORP.

Industrial Mechanical Contracting

Plumbing — Heating
Air Conditioning

P. 0. Box 5443 - Phone 377-7647
3115 Cullman Avenuve
Charlotte, North Carolina

CONWAY, SOUTH CAROLINA
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house.

time on the site of the present
County Fairgrounds.

“The brick were of good quality.
Of the estimated 300,000 used in
the Court House, we found it
necessary to replace only some 500.
These new brick were ordered from
a company nar Greensboro, N. C.,
that specializes in handmade re-
productions of old brick. They were
actually made in wooden molds
similar to those in use in the 1820’s
and match the original brick in
size, shape and color.

“The columns in the front of the
Court House,” Mr. Croxton con-
tinued, ““are a modified Tuscan style
made of brick stuccoed over. No
curved brick were used. The masons
achieved the cylinder design by
using headers, a remarkable job
considering that the handmade
brick were not uniform in size or
shape.

“While working on these columns
we discovered wood blocks inserted
about nine feet up from the bases
that were used, apparently, for
supporting the scaffolding. Two of
these were removed and the co-
lumns refinished at these points.

“All mortar joints in the building
were in such poor condition that it
was necessary to cut them all out
to a depth of three-quarters of an
inch, using a special diamond saw
for this job. They were then replaced
with a special tuck-pointing mortar
that dries hard without shrinkage to
make a water-tight joint.

“Before this tuck-pointing opera
tion the walls were sandblasted to
remove remnants of a coat of barn
red paint, a coat of yellow paint and

Palladian window
second floor of Lancaster Court-

in rear wall,

the accumulation of stain and grime.
It is not known when the red paint
was applied but the yellow was ap-
plied in the 1920's and partially
removed some years later.

“Following the cleaning and tuck-
pointing the masonry was washed
down with a weak acid solution and
then coated with a clear, colorless
silicone sealer. This brought out
the excellent masonry work done
originally on the building as well as
the varied natural colors of the old
brick."

Three layers of roof materials,
including an early, hand-split wood
shingle roof, were removed. The
roof was then covered with tongue
and groove sheathing with felts and
copper valleys and flashing. The new
roof of American Colonial asbestos
cement shingles was selected to
match as closely as possible the
texture and color of the original
handmade shingles.

Other work included the repair
of the wrought iron stair railings and
the restoration of the railings be-
tween the columns on the portico.
Tradition has it that the missing
railings were taken out and melted
down during the War Between the
States. The broken granite steps
where Confederate soldiers attemp-
ted to smash their guns to keep
them from capture by Sherman’s
troops were left as they were.

The wooden doors and transom
at the entrance to the courtroom
were not the originals and were
replaced with full-length paneled
doors with brass hardware and
locks in keeping with the style of
the period. An off-white was used

for painting the trim after a careful
examination of paint layers showed
that white had been used in 1828.

Working on an old building can
be an adventure. Under the hand-
made shingles on the roof workmen
discovered slabs used as sheathing
that measured 20 inches wide. It
would be difficult to find a tree
in upper Carolina today that would
yield 20-inch slabs.

In one of the cornices workmen
discovered a .38 calibre lead bullet.
No one could recall a shooting inci-
dent around the Court House in
recent years to explain it but there
was an ugly riot along Lancaster’s
streets during Reconstruction days.

High on a plate just under the
roof was found a wood chisel of
hand-worked iron left there by some
careless carpenter in 1829. Al-
though a bit rusty, it was still sharp.
Die-stamped in the shank was the
name, "“Weldon.” Also in the attic
was found some gardener's delight
— five truckloads of pigeon manure
that had to be removed before
the new roof was closed in.

Although the Lancaster County
Court House has made some con-
cessions to modern heating and
lighting, the building today is essen-
tially the same as it was in 1828.
It could still receive the final in-
spection and approval of the Com-
missioners of Public Buildings who
were in that year ‘‘B. Massey, Bart-
lett Jones, T. Henry, Jackey Perry,
E. F. Crockett, John Sims and J. H.
Witherspoon.”

Their names and their descen-
dants are still found in Lancaster
County.
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Wilkins and McMillan

Lumber Company

8 Howard Street

Inman, South Carolina

GEORGIA
VITRIFIED BRICK AND CLAY
COMPANY
*High Grade Vitrified
Clay Sewer Pipe
*Drain Tile *Flue Lining
*Wall Coping
Telephone 556-6203
or556-6204

Harlem, Georgia

WISE
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

Construction
Real Estate - Developing
P. 0. Box 1011
Telephone 662.7521

Florence, South Carolina

FERRIS HIGHSMITH

Contractors Builders

P. 0. Box 673
Telephone 726-3496
Ridgeland, South Carolina

BLYCO
GLASS COMPANY, INC.

4017 Beltline Blvd.
Telephone 256-1506
Columbia, South Carolina

W. 0. GREEN
PLUMBING & HEATING CO.

P. 0. Box 1521
Telephone 448-5626
Myrtle Beach, South Carolina

Stafford

Insulation Company

Phone SH 7-1571

Charleston, South Carolina
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Rock Hill

GREENVILLE
{home office)

Six offices Easley $partanburg,
serve homeowners R
throughout South Carolina.

C. Douglas Wilson & Co, is traly ¢ statewide organization. Each branch P

office serves one of the state's major cities, and every office has cither

expanded in recent years, or will be expanding soon.

HOME OFFICE: 201 East North Sireet, Greenville, South Carolina

F Columbia, South Corslina
OTHER OFFICES: Foir e Samter Smeeks

Clinton

A South Carolina
124 North Main 5. Foronce, Sovth Careling bz

246 West Evans Street DESFAERRATIVES
815 Exchange Street Spartanburg, Sevth Carelina

360 Eaxt Main Street

REPRESENTATIVES: Aiken, Boaufort, Clinton, Easley, Georgetown, Rack Hill, Sumter

STATEWIDE SERVICE

Phone AL 4-0301

Columbia, S. (

ANYTHING METAL FOR ANY TYPE BUILDING




Cusfom picture 3ramin9
30 Suif your jadte

COASTAL GLASS COMPANY

410 West Broadway
Myrtle Beach, South Carolina

CARNELL

CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY
2620 Spring Street

FLORENCE, SOUTH CAROLINA
Quality Construction With You In Mind.

EASLEY LUMBER COMPANY

COMPLETE
BUILDING

SERVICE
IS OUR MOTTO

Phone: UL 9-6321
309 E. Main St.

Easley, South Caroling

GIBSON SWIMMING POOL CO.

BUILT FOR CLUBS
MOTEL - RESIDENCES
AND MUNICIPALITIES

CAN BE BUILT ANY
SHAPE, SIZE OR DESIGN

CEdar 9-7730
Conway Building
291 By-Pass
Greenville, S. C

WALLACE CONCRETE
PIPE COMPANY

P. C. Box 207
Florence, South Carclina
301 Lincoln Street
Columbia, South Carolina

TILE COMPANY

e TERRAZZO o CERAMIC aond RESILIENT TILES
SERVING THE PIEDMONT AREA OVER 40 YEARS

277 West Coffee Dial CE 2-6486

Greenville, South Carolina
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WESTINGHOUSE

MICARTA DIVISION

Engineering in Laminated and Molded Flastics

For Home and Industry

HAMPTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

Route 3 - 283-4604

RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL
CONSTRUCTION

Lancaster, South Carolina

?/Uooc/ S/t'oling gfadd :boor:l

BASS
BUILDING SPECIALTIES

2707 RCSEWCOD DRIVE
COLUMBIA, SCUTH CAROLINA

SPARTAN
INSULATION COMPANY

(J. Joe Smith)

1110 Union ~ Phone 585.4271

Spartankurg, South Carelina

GRICE & WHITLOCK
BUILDERS

Homes Built Anywhere In South Carolina

Joe Whitlock

1458 Leesburg Road
Telephone 787-6083
Columbia, South Careolina

Tom Grice
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MARIONm

LUMBER COMPANY,
INC. / /

Manufacturers Of

Yellow Pine & Cypress Kiln Dried And

Dressed: Flooring: Ceiling, Partition
And Interior Finish

Complete ‘Osmose’ Pressure Treating Plant

PHONE 575
N\ Y ] ]

Marion, South Carolina

L




J. R. HAMRICK
& SON

Lumber - Millwork - Roofing - Custom Millwork

BUILDERS SUPPLIES

Complete Line of Benjamin Moore Paints

Chester, South Carolina

PEE DEE
BUILDING

INDUSTRIES
ING,

Marion
South Carolina

E. L. THOMPSON
CONTRACTOR

15 North Main Street
INMAN, SOUTH CAROLINA
Phone GR 2-2401

Residential Constructinn

6. M. WORTHINGTON

TILE COMPANY

Ceramic and Quarry Tile
Marble and Stone

Montague Avenue

Telephone OR 5-7 397
GREENWOOD, SOUTH CAROLINA

MARION B. ULRICK
Qua/[fy, Con:s[ruch'an

Residenfial Light Commercial

FREE ESTIMATES

702 East McBee Ave.
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

PALMETTO
BUILDING SUPPLY
COMPANY

LUMBER & BUILDING SUPPLIES =

ROOFING — PAINT

— SHEET ROCK — MILLWORK

DIAL 435-5495 — MANNING, SOUTH CAROLINA
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CHRISTMAS
ELECTRIC COMPANY

P. . Box 07

Conway, South Caroline

REEVES
COMCRETE BLOCK COMPANY

2 MILESEAST OF CAMDEN
ON HIGHWAY NO, 1

Phone HE 2-2332

CAMDEN, SOUTH CAROLINA

GARRETT
CONSTRUCTION CO.

116 South Georgia Avenue

Greenville, South Carolina

Telephone 235.6331

LAWRENCE REID
BUILDERS

I:. Parkins Mill Road
Route 6

Greenville, South Carolina

A. B. ROBERTS
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

1234 Railroad Street
CA 6-2531

Residential and Commercial

Construction

South Carolina

Anderson,

Dixie Lumber Company

Lumber & Building Materials
Complete Building Service
420 Greenville Road
UL 7-2521]
Easley, South Carolina

Srantax

GENERAL CONTRACTORS
Storm  Drains,
REE
President and General Manager
P.0. Box 762
Spartanburg, South Carolina

Utilities

Froneberger

KINSEY JENKINS
PLUMBING & HEATING COMPANY
Commercial — Residential®
Contracting
1564 Rivers Avenue
Charleston, South Carolina

R. E. KIRVIN
LUMBER COMPANY, INC.

0. Box 98
Telephone 452-2221

Pinewood, South Carolina

HARPER

BUILDERS, INC.

GENERAL CONTRACTORS
Telephone VI 7-7309

Williamston, South Carolina

JENKINS
CONSTRUCTICON COMPANY
1183 Sawyer St., N. E.
Orangeburg, South Carolina
If it’s better building, priced

right with quality throughout, call

Mr. Thomas C. Jenkins

at JE 4-1306

C. W.
BLANCHARD

General Contractor
722-1661 — P. Q. Box 748
Charleston, South Carolina

jf 3‘,5" \“I

1"1

s

- L;‘~

&.'
: e m—
GLENDELL BUILDERS INC
Kingshorry H omes
CA 4-4620 CA 6-5482
Anderson. South Carolina
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Finer Homes With Your Better
Living In Mind.

JOHNSON BROTHERS
CONSTRUCTION Co.

102 West Harrison St

Dillon, S. C.

L]

STARR
LUMBER COMPANY

John Ellison Brown
[Flat Rock Roud — CA 6-6169

Starr, South Carolina




THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

SOUTH ATLANTIC REGIONAIL CONFERENCE

EXHIBIT AWARDS
PROGR.AM

EXHIBIT EXCELLENCHE

GIANT PORTLAND CEMENT COMPANY

Suddenly you’re in the dark. Can you find

a match? Where’s the flashlight? Have you
got a new fuse? Full housepower puts an end
to these problems. Wiring that was adequate
a few years ago may not live up 1o your

present needs. This means that your valuable
appliances are giving half-hearted performances,

See your electrical contractor. He'll be glad

to check your present wiring system and suggest

the additional wiring you need to come up to

full housepower . .. for happier living . . . electrically.

SOUTH CAROLINA ELECTRIC & GAS CO.




o o S i B n— S ‘n_; \' 5
i X T ¥, ? e e
RO o AR > T o 1 LTIV i 47

s Maid L om

o + 2 Ele A a2 v:,
Chimney built of rubble masonry; also small wall in foreground; flagging rough sawed.

“The SBilk of the Trade”

WINNSBORO GRANITE
CORPORATION

RION, S. C.

RCHITECTS ARE INVITED TO WRITE FOR DETAILS AND FURTHER PARTICULARS  ~




